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Attorneys for Defendant 
AMN HEALTHCARE, INC. 
 

 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

KATHARINE L. WHITE, on behalf of 
herself, all others similarly situated, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

AMN HEALTHCARE, INC., a Nevada 
corporation; and DOES 1 through 50, 
inclusive, 

Defendants. 

CASE NO.  3:18-cv-6469 

DEFENDANT AMN HEALTHCARE, INC.’S 
NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF ACTION TO 
FEDERAL COURT 

[28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1332(d), 1441 and 1446] 

(Alameda County Superior Court  
Case No. RG18921814) 

 

 
 
  

Case 3:18-cv-06469-JCS   Document 1   Filed 10/23/18   Page 1 of 8



LITTLER MENDELSON,  P .C .  
3 3 3  B u s h  S t r e e t  

3 4 t h  F l o o r  
S a n  F r a n c i s c o ,  C A   9 4 1 0 4  

4 1 5 . 4 3 3 . 1 9 4 0  

 

 2. CASE NO  3:18-cv-6469 

DEFENDANT AMN HEALTHCARE, INC.’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF ACTION TO FEDERAL COURT 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

TO THE CLERK OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA, AND TO PLAINTIFF AND HER 

ATTORNEYS OF RECORD: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant AMN HEALTHCARE, INC. 

(“Defendant”) hereby removes the above-entitled action brought by Plaintiff KATHARINE L. 

WHITE (“Plaintiff”) (collectively, the “Parties”) in the California Superior Court, County of 

Alameda — with reservation of all defenses and rights — to the United States District Court for the 

Northern District of California, San Francisco Division pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1332, 

1441(a) and (b), and 1446.1  

INTRODUCTION 

1. On September 21, 2018, Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and all others similarly 

situated, filed a Complaint against Defendant in the Superior Court of the State of California in and 

for the County of Alameda, entitled Katharine L. White, on behalf of herself, all others similarly 

situated, v. AMN Healthcare, Inc., a Nevada corporation; and DOES 1 through 50, inclusive, Case 

No. RG18921814 (hereinafter the “State Court Action”).   

REMOVAL IS TIMELY 

2. This Notice of Removal is timely because Defendant is filing the Notice of 

Removal within 30 days from the date on which the Summons was deemed effectively served.  See 

Murphy Brothers, Inc. v. Michetti Pipe Stringing, Inc., 526 U.S. 344, 354 (1999).  The Complaint 

initiating the State Court Action was filed in the Superior Court on September 21, 2018.  A true and 

correct copy of the Complaint, Summons, and all other process that have been served on Defendant 

to initiate the State Court Action is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  Service was completed on 

September 24, 2018; as of the date of the filing of this document, no proof of service has been filed 

with Alameda County Superior Court according to the online docket.  Thus, in accordance with 

28 U.S.C. § 1446(b), Defendant is timely filing this Notice of Removal within 30 days of service.   

                                                 
1 Notwithstanding this removal, Defendant reserves all arguments and objections to this Court’s 
subject matter jurisdiction, including arguments and objections under Article III of the U.S. 
Constitution (see, e.g., Spokeo, Inc. v. Robins, -- U.S.--, 136 S. Ct. 1540 (2016)). 
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REMOVAL JURISDICTION 

A. The Court Has Original Jurisdiction Over Plaintiff’s FCRA Claims, Which 
Present Federal Questions 

3. Plaintiff’s Complaint alleges violations of the federal Fair Credit Reporting 

Act, 15 U.S.C § 1681, et seq., (“FCRA”).  (Exhibit A, Compl., ¶¶ 24-57 (First and Second Causes of 

Action).)  Plaintiff contends that an authorization form provided to Plaintiff to authorize a 

background report violated the disclosure requirements of the FCRA.  (Id., ¶¶ 23-45.)  Plaintiff also 

alleges that Defendant failed to provide a proper summary of rights in violation of the FCRA.  (Id., 

¶¶ 46-57.)  Thus, the State Court Action is removable to the United States District Court of the 

Northern District of California because the Court has original jurisdiction over the federal questions 

presented by Plaintiff’s Complaint pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1441(a).  

4. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a) over any 

claims over which it does not have original federal question jurisdiction because they form part of 

the same case or controversy as those claims over which the Court has original jurisdiction.  

Separate claims “form part of the same case or controversy” when they involve “a common nucleus 

of operative facts” such that a plaintiff “would ordinarily be expected to try them all in a single 

judicial proceeding.”  United Mine Workers v. Gibbs, 383 U.S. 715, 725 (1966).  Here, Plaintiff’s 

non-FCRA claims arise from the same alleged acquisition and use of various reports as Plaintiff’s 

FCRA claims, and thus all of Plaintiff’s claims arise out of a common nucleus of operative facts.  

(See, e.g., Exhibit A, Compl. ¶¶ 58-100.)  Plaintiff alleges that Defendant’s disclosure and 

authorization form that supposedly violates the FCRA also violates the California Investigative 

Consumer Reporting Agencies Act (“ICRAA”) and the California Consumer Credit Reporting 

Agencies Act (“CCRAA”).  (Id., ¶¶ 58-85.)  Plaintiff further alleges that the claimed violations of 

the FCRA, ICRAA and the ICRAA are “unlawful business practices” that violate California 

Business & Professions Code section 17200 et seq.  (Id., ¶¶ 86-100.)   

5. The Court consequently has supplemental jurisdiction over all other claims for 

relief under California law.  28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).   

/ / / 
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B. The Court Also Has Original Jurisdiction Over This Action Under CAFA 

6. The State Court Action was brought as a national class action under Cal. Code 

of Civ. Proc. § 382 consisting of “[a]ll of Defendants’ current, former and prospective applicants for 

employment in the United States who applied for a job with Defendants at any time during the 

period for which a background check was performed beginning five years prior to the filing of this 

action and ending on the date that final judgment is entered in this action.”  (Exhibit A, Compl. 

¶¶ 11-12.)  Defendant and its affiliates performed background checks on more than 100 individuals, 

including persons residing outside of California, in that five-year time period.  (Declaration of Randy 

Sellers, ¶ 4.)  Thus, this Court also has jurisdiction over this action under the Class Action Fairness 

Act (“CAFA”), 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d), because there is at least minimal diversity between the parties, 

the putative class includes more than 100 individuals, and the aggregate amount in controversy for 

the purported class claims exceeds $5 million.  

7. To establish jurisdiction under CAFA, there must be at least minimal diversity 

between the parties.  28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2).  CAFA diversity jurisdiction exists if “any member of 

a class of plaintiffs is a citizen of a State different from any defendant.”  28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A). 

8. In this action, Plaintiff seeks to represent a class on behalf of “[a]ll of 

Defendants’ current, former and prospective applicants for employment in the United States….”  

(Exhibit A, Compl. ¶ 12.)  Montelongo v. RadioShack, No. 09-01235 MMM (AJWx), 2010 WL 

11507995, at *9 (C.D. Cal. Mar. 31, 2010) (denying remand where plaintiff pled a nationwide class 

that met the requirements of CAFA); accord In re HP Inkjet Printer Litig., No. C 05-3580 JF (PVT), 

2009 WL 282051, at *3 (N.D. Cal. Feb. 5, 2009) (“Because there is no indication that Plaintiffs 

pleaded a putative nationwide class in bad faith, this Court had subject matter jurisdiction”); Rosas v. 

Carnegie Mortg., LLC, 2012 WL 1865480, at *5 (S.D. Cal. May 21, 2012) (“Because the complaint 

alleges a ‘nationwide class,’ [cite], minimal diversity necessarily exists. . . .  Accordingly, the Court 

finds that it has jurisdiction pursuant to CAFA.”).  Thus, this national, putative class includes non-

California citizens.  

9. For purposes of determining diversity jurisdiction of Defendant, corporations 

are only citizens of the state of their principal place of business, i.e., where their “nerve center” is 
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located.  See 3123 SMB LLC v. Horn, 880 F.3d 461, 465 (9th Cir. 2018) (citing Hertz Corp. v. 

Friend, 559 U.S. 77, 93 (2010)).  The “nerve center” is the corporation’s main place of business, 

where the “corporation’s officers direct, control, and coordinate the corporation’s activities.”  Hertz 

Corp., 559 U.S. at 93.  Here, Defendant is alleged to be an Ohio corporation, with its principal place 

of business in California.  (Exhibit A, Compl. ¶ 7.)  Therefore, for diversity purposes, Defendant is a 

citizen of California.  

10. Because Defendant is a citizen of California and Plaintiff brings this national 

class action on behalf of individuals who are not citizens of California, the Parties meet the standard 

for minimal diversity under CAFA.  

11. CAFA provides this Court with jurisdiction over a class action when “the 

number of members of all proposed plaintiff classes in the aggregate [is not] less than 100.”  28 

U.S.C. § 1332(d)(5)(B).  CAFA defines “class members” as those “persons (named or unnamed) 

who fall within the definition of the proposed or certified class in a class action.”  28 U.S.C. 

§ 1332(d)(1)(D).  Here, in this action, the putative class includes more than 50,000 individuals.  

(Sellers Decl., ¶ 4.)  Thus, CAFA’s numerosity requirement is satisfied.  See 28 U.S.C. 

§ 1332(d)(5)(B). 

12. The amount in controversy for all claims exceeds $5 million.  CAFA requires 

the “matter in controversy” to exceed “the sum or value of $5,000,000 exclusive of interest and 

costs.”  28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2).  Where the plaintiff’s complaint does not state the amount in 

controversy, the defendant’s notice of removal may do so.  See Dart Cherokee Basin Oper. Co. LLC 

v. Brandon W. Owens, --U.S.--, 135 S. Ct. 547, 551 (2014).  All that is required is “a plausible 

allegation that the amount in controversy exceeds the jurisdictional threshold.”  Id. at 554; accord 

Ibarra v. Manheim Inv., Inc., 775 F.3d 1193, 1195 (9th Cir. 2015).  No evidence establishing the 

amount in controversy is required.  Dart Cherokee Basin Oper. Co. LLC, 135 S. Ct. at 551.  This is 

because there is “no anti-removal presumption” in cases invoking CAFA.  Id. at 554. 

13. “The claims of the individual class members shall be aggregated to determine 

whether the matter in controversy exceeds” the jurisdictional minimum.  28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(6).  

“In measuring the amount in controversy, a court must assume that the allegations of the complaint 
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are true and that a jury will return a verdict for the plaintiff on all claims made in the complaint.”  

Kenneth Rothschild Trust v. Morgan Stanley Dean Witter, 199 F. Supp. 2d 993, 1001 (C.D. Cal. 

2002).  The ultimate inquiry is what amount is put “in controversy” by the plaintiff’s complaint, not 

what a defendant will actually owe.  See Rippee v. Boston Mkt. Corp., 408 F. Supp. 2d 982, 986 

(S.D. Cal. 2005); see also Ibarra, 775 F. 3d at 1198 n.1 (explaining that even when the court is 

persuaded the amount in controversy exceeds $5 million, defendants are still free to challenge the 

actual amount of damages at trial because they are only estimating the damages in controversy). 

14. Plaintiff seeks statutory and actual damages, punitive damages, injunctive 

relief, restitution, interest, and attorneys’ fees.  (See Exhibit A, Compl., Prayer for Relief.) 

15. Although Defendant denies that Plaintiff’s claims have any merit, and 

likewise denies that this matter should be certified as a class action, when all claims arising under the 

FCRA are aggregated, the allegations in the Complaint give rise to an amount in controversy that 

meets this Court’s jurisdictional minimum of $5 million under CAFA.  28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2).   

16. The FCRA provides for statutory penalties for willful non-compliance in the 

amount of “not less than $100 and not more than $1,000.”  15 U.S.C. § 1681n.  In this case, the 

alleged putative class includes more than 50,000 individuals.  (Sellers Dec, ¶ 4.)  Thus, the amount 

in controversy is at least $5 million (50,000 x $100). 

17. In addition, Plaintiff’s putative claims for violations of Cal. Civ. Code § 1786 

et seq. on a class basis are limited to actual damages, inclusive of attorneys’ fees.  CAL. CIV. CODE § 

1786.50(a)(1); see, e.g., Poinsignon v. Imperva, Inc., No. 17-cv-05653-EMC, 2018 WL 1709942, at 

*4 (N.D. Cal. Apr. 9, 2018).  While Plaintiff does not allege the amount of actual damages claimed, 

in California it is not uncommon for attorneys’ fees award to be 25 to 33 percent of the recovery.  

See, e.g., Chavez v. Netflix, Inc., 162 Cal. App. 4th 43, 66 n.11 (2008) (quoting Shaw v. Toshiba Am. 

Info. Sys., Inc., 91 F. Supp. 2d 942, 972 (E.D. Tex. 2000) (“Empirical studies show that, regardless 

whether the percentage method or the lodestar method is used, fee awards in class actions average 

around one-third of the recovery.”).  Thus, Plaintiff’s allegations place at least $1,250,000 (25% of 

$5 million) in controversy. 

/ / / 

Case 3:18-cv-06469-JCS   Document 1   Filed 10/23/18   Page 6 of 8



LITTLER MENDELSON,  P .C .  
3 3 3  B u s h  S t r e e t  

3 4 t h  F l o o r  
S a n  F r a n c i s c o ,  C A   9 4 1 0 4  

4 1 5 . 4 3 3 . 1 9 4 0  

 

 7. CASE NO  3:18-cv-6469 

DEFENDANT AMN HEALTHCARE, INC.’S NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF ACTION TO FEDERAL COURT 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

18. Accordingly, while Defendant denies Plaintiff’s claims of wrongdoing, based 

on the foregoing, Plaintiff’s claims for damages, penalties, attorneys’ fees, and other relief 

conservatively exceed the jurisdictional minimum under CAFA.  Moreover, should the Court find 

that CAFA jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s claims is not appropriate for any reason, there still remains 

federal question jurisdiction over the FCRA claims, and all other claims for relief under California 

law are within the supplemental jurisdiction of this Court.  

VENUE IS PROPER 

19. The district and division embracing the place where the State Court Action is 

pending is the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, San Francisco 

Division.  See 28 U.S.C. §§ 84(a) and 1441(a). 

EXHIBITS 

20. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a), the following are attached as Exhibits hereto:  

A copy of the Complaint, Summons, and all other process that have been served on Defendant to 

initiate the State Court Action is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  A copy of Defendant’s filed Answer 

to the Complaint in the State Court Action is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

NOTICE TO PLAINTIFF AND STATE COURT 

21. Promptly after the filing of this Notice of Removal in the United States 

District Court for the Northern District of California, written notice of such filing will be given by 

the undersigned to Plaintiff’s counsel of record, and a copy of the Notice of Removal, including 

exhibits, will be filed with the Clerk of the Court for the Superior Court of the County of Alameda, 

California as required by 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d). 

22. Counsel for Defendant has signed this Notice of Removal in compliance with 

the requirements of 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a) and Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

WHEREFORE, based on the foregoing, Defendant gives notice that it has removed to 

this Court the State Court Action now pending in the Superior Court of California, County of 

Alameda, to the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, pursuant to 

28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1441(a) and (b), and 1446. 

/ / / 
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DATED:  October 23, 2018  

/s/ Alison S. Hightower  
ALISON S. HIGHTOWER 
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendant  
AMN HEALTHCARE, INC. 
 

 
FIRMWIDE:157645611.1 058080.1007  
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S U MM O N S FOR COURT USE ONLY 

(C!i-ACION JtlDICIAL) 
(SOLO PARA USO DE LA CORTE) 

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT:  
(A VISO AL DEMANDADO): A1,ASVjr4,I.l. A ff ,n~ } ~ 
AMN HEALTHCARE, INC., a Nevada corporation; and DOES 1 
thi-ough 50, inclusive,  

YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF: 
CLOW 0FTHE S( frERj.0'C (LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE): 

KATHARINE L. WHITE, on behalf of herself, aII others similarly ~~` ~`~( ~~~°~u~• Dl'r 
situated, 

NOTICEI You have been sued. The court may decide against you without your being heard unless you respond within 30 days. Read the lnformafion 
below. 

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS aRer this summons and legal papers are served on you to ffle a written response at this court and have a copy 
served on the plaintiff. A letter or phone cali will not prolect you. Your written response must be in proper legai form if you want the court to hear your 
case. There may be a court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more informaiian at the Califomia Courts 
Online Self-He1p Center (wwv.,.courfinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), your county law library, or the courthouse nearest you. If you cannot pay the filing fee, ask 
the court clerk for a fee waiver form. if you do not fite your response on time, you may lose the case by default, and your wages, money, and property 
may be taken without fudher waming from the court. 

There are other legal requirements. You may wanl to call an attorney right away. )f you do not know an attorney, you may want to call an alforney 
referral service. If you cannot atford an attorney, you may be eligible for free legai services from a nonprotit legal services program. You can locate 
these nonprofft groups at the Califomia Legal Services Web site (www.lawhelpcalifornia.org), the California Courts Online Self-Help Center 
(www.courtinfo.ca.gov/seffhelp),  or by con(acting your local court or county bar association. NOTE: The court has a statutory lien for waived fees and 
costs on any setttement or arbilration award of $10,000 or more in a civil case. The court's lien must be paid before the court.will dismiss the case. 
tAVlSOI Lo han demandado. Si no responde dentro de 30 dias, le corte puetle decidir en su contra sin escuchar su versl6,n. Lea la informaci6n a 
continuaci6n. 

TJene 30 D%AS DE CALEIVDARIO despu6s de que le entreguen esta citacl6n y papeles fegales para presentar una respuesta por escrfto en esta 
corte y hacer que se entregue una cop/a al demandante. Una cada o una Ifamada telef6nica no /o prolegen. Su fespuesta por escrito tiene que estar 
en formato legal con-ecto si desea que procesen su casa en la crorte. Es posible que haya un fomrulario que usted pueda usar para su respuesta. 
Puede encontrar estos formularios de la corte y m6s informacidn en el Centro de Ayuda de las Corfes de Caltfomia (www.sucorte.ca.gov), en la 
bibfloteca de leyes de su condado o en la corte que le quede mds cerca. Si no puede pagarla cuota de presentaci6n, pida al secretario de ta corle 
que le drs un formulaffo de exencl6n de pago de cuotas. Si no presenta su respuesta a tiempo, puede perder el caso por incumplirntento y/a corte le 
podra quitar su sueldo, dfnero y bienes sin mds advertencia. 

Nay otros requisitos legales. Es recomendable que llame a un abogado inmediatamente. Sf no conoce a un abogado, puede Ilamar a un servicio de 
remfsi6n a abogados. Si no puede pagar a un abogado, es posible que cumpla con los requisitos para obtener servicios legates gratuitos de un 
prngrama de servicios legafes sin Cnes de lucro. Puede encontrar estos grupos sin 11nes de lucro en el sitio web de Califomia Legai Services, 
(wwvr.lawhetpcalifornia.org), en el Centro de Ayuda de las Cortes de California, (www.sucorte,ra.gov) o poni6ndose en contacto con la cotte o el 
coleglo de abogados locales. AVISO: Porley, la corte tiene derecho a reclamar/as cuotas ylos costos exentos porfmponerun gravamen sobre 
cua/quier recuperaci6n de $90,000 6 m6s de valor recibida mediante tun acuerdo o una concesidn de arbitraje en un caso de derecho civil. Tiene que 
pagar et gravarrren de la corte antes de que la corte pueda desechar el caso. 

The name and address of the court is: cASE NurnasR:  
(Ef nombre y direccibn de la corte es): Rene C. Davidsott Courthouse INJmero def Caso):  

1225 f allon Street 
Oakland, California 94612 

The name, address, and telephone number of plaintiffs attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, is: 
(El nombre, la direccl6n y el nrimero de tel6fono del abogado del demandante, o del demandante que no tiene abogado, es): 

Shaun Setareh, Esq., 315 South Beverly Drive, Suite 315, Beverly Hills, California 90212, (310) 888-7771 

DATE: Cwl.l1D FINKI:. Clerk, by Deputy 
(Fecha) (Adjunto) 

(For proof of servfce of this summons, use Proof of Service of Summons (form POS-010).) 
(Para prueba de entrega de esta citati6n use el formulario Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)). 

NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served 
ISEAL[ 

1. 0 as an individual defendant. 
2. as the person sued under the ffctitious name of (specify): 

xon bet,alf of (specify): AMN Healthcare, Inc., a Nevada Corporation 
under: CCP 416.10 (corporation) 0 CCP 416.60 (minor) 

~ CCP 416.20 (defunct corporation) 0 CCP 416.70 (conservatee) 

[~ CCP 416.40 (association or partnership) 0 CCP 416.90 (authorized person) 

(Q other (specify): 
4. = by personal delivery on (date): 

Form Adopletl for Mandalory Use 
Judical Council ot Callfornia 
SUrd.100 [ReV July 1, 2039] 

SUMMON.S Cooe ot Civll Procedure §§ e12.20, 46 
www.touRlnfo.ca.,rov 
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Case No. . •' ` 1 14 
CLASS AC'I'I.ON 

COMPLATNT 

1. Violation of 15 U.S.C.§1681b(b)(2)(A) 
(I'air Credit Reporting Act); 

2. Violation of 15 U.S.C.§1681d(a)(1) and 
1681 g(c) (Fair Credit Reporting Act); 

3. Violation of California Civil Code§ 1786 et 
seq. (Investigative Consumer Reporting 
Agencies Act); 

4. Violation of California Civil Code§ 1785 et 
seq. (Consumer Credit Repoiling Agencies 
Act); 

5. Unfair Competition (Bus. & Prof. Code§ 
17200 et seq.) 

JURY 'I'RIAL J(3EMAN}OEl® 

k 

I Shaun Setareh (SBN 204514) 
shaun@setarehlaw.com  

H. Scott Leviant (SBN 200834) 
scott@setarehlaw.com  

William M. Pao (SBN 219846) 
wil l i am@setarehlaw, com 

SETAREH LAW GROUP 
315 Soutli Beverly Drive, Suite 315 
'Beverly Hills, California 90212 
Teleplione (310) 888-7771 
Facsimile (310) 888-0109 
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KATHARINE L. WHITE, on behalf of 
herself, all others similarly situated, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

AMN I IEALTHCARE, ZNC., a Nevada 
corporation; and DOES 1 through 50, 
inclusive, 

Defendants. 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
KATHARINE L. WHITE 

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
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~ ~ ~ ~~ 
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COMES NOW, Plaintiff KAT7IARINE L. WHITE ("Plaintil'f'), on behalf of herself and all 

others sinularly situated, complains and alleges as follows: 

INTI20DUCTION 

1. Plaintiff brings this class action against Defendants AMN 1-IEALTHCARE, INC. and 

DOES 1 througli 100, inclusively (collectively refen-ed to as "Defendants") for alleged violations of 

the Fair Credit Reporting Act ("FCRA") aiid similar California laws. 

2. Plaintiff alleges that Deferidants routinely acquire consumer, investigative consumer 

8 and/or consumer credit reports (referred to collectively as "credit and background reports") to 

9 conduct background cliecks on Plaintiff and otlier prospective, cuTTent and former employees and 

]0 use infoiniation from credit and background reports in connection witla their Iiiring process without 

I1 providing proper disclosures and obtaining proper authorization in coinpliance with the law. 

12 3. Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated current, foriner 

13 and prospective einployees, seeks coa-npensatory and punitive claniabes due to Defendants' 

14 systematic and willful violations of the I'CRA (15 U.S.C. §§ 168I et seq.), the California 

15 Iuvestigative Consumer Reporting Agencies Act ("ICRAA") (Cal. Civ. Code § 1786 et seq.); and 

16 the California Consumer Credit Reporting Agencies Act ("CCRAA'") (Cal. Civ. Code § 1785, et 

17 seq.). 

18 JUh2ISDiCTION AND VENUE 

©I 4. Tlus Court has subject matter jui-isdietion to liear this case because Plaintiff is 

201 informed and believes, and thereupon alleges that the znonetary dainages and restitution sought 

21 herein for Defendants' conduct exceeds the inininial jurisdictional Iiinits ofthe Superior Court. 

22 5. Venue is proper in Alameda County lwrsuant to Code of Civil Procedure sections 

23 '. 395(a) and 395.5 in that liability arose in the county because at least some of the transactions that 

24 are the subject znatter of this Complaint occurred therein and/or eacli defendant is f.ound, maintains 

25 offices, transacts business and/or lias an agent tlierein. 

26 PAR'T1ES 

?7 6. Plaintiff is, and at all relevant tiines mentioned hei-eiix, an individual residin; in the 

28 State of California. 

~ ~ ~ CI.ASS ACTIOTr CO;'ti7PLA1NT 
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7. Defendant AMN IIEALTHCARE, INC. is, and at all relevant tiines mentioned 

I herein, a corporation orgaiuzed and existing under the laws of Ohio aiad doing business in the State 

I of Califoniia. 

8. Plaintiff is ignorant of the true names, capacities, relationships, and extent of 

participation in tlle conduct alleged hereiii, of the defendants sued as DOES 1 tlu-ough 100, 

inclusive, but is infonned and believes and thereupon alleges that the defendants are legally 

responsible for the wrongfiil conduct alleged herein and therefore sues these def'endants by such 

: I fictitious names. Plaintiff will amend the Complaint to allege the tzue natnes and capacities of the 

a I DOE defendants when ascertained. 

10 9. Plaintiff is infonned and believes and thereupon alleges tlzat, at all relevant tinies 

11 ilientioned herein, aIl defendants were the agents, employees and/or servants, masters or employers 

12 of the reinaiiung defendants, and in doing the things hereinafter alleged, were acting within the 

13 course and scope of such agency or eanployment, and with the approval and ratif cation of eacli of 

!E!I the other defendants. 

15 10. Plaintiff alleges that each and every one of the acts and omissions alleged lierein 

16 ~ were performed by and/or attributable to all defendants, each acting as agents ancl/or employees, 

17 and/or under the direction and control of eacli of the other defendants, and that the alleged acts and 

18 failures to act were within the course and scope of the agency, einployment and/or direction and 

19 control. 

20 CLASS ALLEGATIONS 

21 11. This action is brouglit and may be inaintained as a elass action pursuant to Code of 

22 Civil Procedure section 382 because there is a well-dcfined community of interest among the 

23 persons who coniprise the readily ascertainable classes defined below and because Plauitiff is 

24 I unaware of any difficulties likely to be encountered in managing this case as a class action. 

25 12. Class Definitions:  The classes are defined as follows: 

26 FCRA Class:  All of Defendants' cui7•ent, fornier and prospective 
applicants for employrnent in the United States «-}io applied for a job «rith 

27 Defendants at any tizne during the period for which a background check 
was perfonned beginning five years prior to the filing of this action and 

28 ending on the date that final judgment is eritered in this action- 

CLASS ACTTON COTviPLA1NT 
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1 
ICRAA Class:  All of Defendants' cun•ent, fornier and prospective 

2 applicants for employment in Califoniia, at any time during the peziod 
beginning five years prior to the filing of this action and ending on the 

3 date that final judginent is entered into this action. 

4 CCRAA Class: All of Defendants' current, former and prospective 
applicants for employinent in Califoniia, at any time during the period 
begimiiiig seven years prior to the f ling of this action and ending on the 
date that fnal judgnlent is entered in this action. 

13. Resei vation of Rights:  Pursuant to Rule of Court 3.765(b), Plaintiff reserves the 

right to an-iend or inodify the class definitions r.vitlz greater specificity, by fiirther division into sub-

I classes and/or by liinitation to particular issues. 

14. Nunierosity:  Tl7e class members are so nunierous that tlie individual joinder of each 

I individual class niember is impractical. While Plaintiff does not currently know the exact nulnber 

I of ciass members, Plaintiff is informed and believes that the actual number exceeds the minimurn 
12 

I required for numerosity iuider Califoi-iiia law. 
13 

15. Conmionality and Yredominance:  Cominon questions of law and fact exist as to 
14 

all class meinbers and predoininate over any questions which affect only individual class members. 
15 

Tlaese questions include, but are not limited to: 
16 

A. E'Vhether Defendaiits failed to comply witlh the requirernents of 15 U.S.C. § 
171 

7001 section 101(c)(] ); 
181 

B. VJhetlier Defendants willfiilly failed to proAde the class witli stand-alone 
ul I 

written disclosures before obtainint; a credit or background report in 
20 

21 
compliance with the statutory niandates; 

C. V4'liether Defendants willfully failed to identify the name, address, telephone 
22 

nuinber, and/or vt1ebsite of the investigative consumer reporting agency 
23 

conducting the investigation; 
24 

D. Whether Defendants willfully failed to identify tlie source ofthe credit report 
25 

26 
to be perfbnmed; 

E_ W'hether Defendants willfully failed to coFnply with the FCRA, ICRAA 
27 

and/or the CCRAA.  
28 

C:LASS ACTION COMPI_AINT 
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Typicali4:  Plaintiff's claims are typical of the other class members' claims. 

nformed and believes and thereupon alleges that Defendants have a policy, practice or 

icy or practice whieh resulted in Defendants failinl; to cornply witli the FCRA, ICRAA 

k as alleged herein. 

Adequacy of Class Representative:  Plaintiff is an adequate class representative in 

no interests that are adverse to, or otherwise in conflict witli, the interests of the absent 

-rs. Plaintiff is dedicated to vigorously prosecuting this action on belialf of class 

'laintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of class members. 

€: Adeguacy of Class Counsel:  Plaintiff`s counsel are adequate class counsel in that 

I they have ~ kiiown cont]icts of int.erest witb Plaintiff or absent class meinbers, are experienced in 

class actioi litigation and are dedicated to vigorously prosecuting this action on belialf of Plaintiff 

and absent lass inernbers. 

19. Superiority:  A class action is vastly superior to otlier available means for fair and 

eff cient ad udication of class menibers' claims and would be beneficial to the parties and the Court. 

Class actioi i treatment will allow a number of siinilarly situated persons to be simult,aneously and 

efficiently I rosecute their common claims in a single foi-um without the unnecessary duplication of I' 

effort and eKpense that numerous individual actions would entail. In addition, the monetary 

aniounts du a to niany individual class inembers are likely to be relatively smail and would therefore 

make it difl ctYlt, if not impossible, ffor individual class members to both seek and obtaiii relief. 

Moreover, ~ class action will serve an important public iaaterest by pennitting class members to 

effectively ~ursue the recovery of monies owed t.o tljeni. Furtlier, a class action will prevent the 

potential fo inconsistent or contradict.oiy judgments iiitierent in individual litigatioli. 

ENERAL ALLEGATIOIVS C011x?V10N TO ALL CAtUSES OF AC7 

20. Plaintiff was employed with Defendants beginning on or about June 24, 2013 and 

was terrnin ted on or about September 21, 2013. 

21- Whei Plaintiff applied foi-  employmeut, Defendants perfornied a background 

investigati on Plaintiff. 

22.f Based upon information and belief, Defendants did iiot provide lel;ally compliant 

- -----------------___.- ----- 
CLASS ACTION COMPLA]NT 
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authorization forins to Plaintiff and the putative class. 

The Background Check Autliorization Forni was part of a tliree-page online fonn 

extraneous and supertluous language such as: 

a. "1'liis report inay be coniplied with inforniation froin courts record repositories, 

deparhnent of niotor vehicles, past or present employers and educatioiial 

institutions, governmental oceupational licensing or registration entities, business 

or personal references, and any other source required to verify information that I 

have voluntarily supplied." 

b. '`Have you ever been convicted of a crime other tlian a minor traffic violation? 

Driving under the infiuence is not considered a minor traffic violation. 

Exceptions due to state ernployrnent law: Conviction(s) tliat have been sealed, 

expunged, or eradicated and Califortiia Healtli & Safety Code §§1 1357 (b) &(c), 

11360(c), 11364, 11365, 11550 marijuana-related convictions over 2 years o1d, 

should not be revealed." 

c. "The CoriZpany complies with state and federal law including the Fair Credit 

Reporting Act (FCRA) wlien making einployiiient-related decisions using 

criminal backs.,,ir -ound cliecks.'° 

d. "Cali#ornia, M.innesota and Oklahonia Residents please note: In co2inection with 

your application for employment;  your consumer report may be obtaitied and 

reviewed. Under California, Minnesota and Oklalioma law, you have a right to 

receive a free copy of your constinier report by checking the appropi-iate box 

below." 

e. "YES, I ani a Minnesota resident aiid would like a free copy of niy consumer 

report.'° 

f"YES, I am an Oklahorna resident and wuld like a free copy of rny consumer 

report." 

g. "Califorriia Notice: You have the right under Section 1786.22 of the California 

Civil Code to corttact C.exisNexis during normal busit3ess hours to obtain your 

CLASS AC7']ON COMPLAIN7 
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19 26. ~ 

file for your review. You niay obtain such infoi-ination as follows: 

]. hi person at LexisNexis's offices at the address listed above. You will ileeci 

to furnislh proper identification prior to receiving your file. You may liave 

sonieone accompany you and should inforni such person that they will aiso 

have to present reasoiiable identification. If you want LexisNexis to disclose 

to or discuss your infonnation with this third party, you may be required to 

provide a written stateinent granting LexisNexis pei-mission to do so. 

2. By certified mail, if you make a written request (and provide proper 

identification) to have your file sent to a specified addressee. 

3. By teleplione, i.f you have previously made a wiitten request and provided 

proper identification." 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

TO PROVIDE PROPER DISCLOSURE IN VXOLA'I'ION OF THE FCRA 

(15 U.S.C. §§ 1.681 b(b)(2)(A)) 

(Plaintiff and I+CRA Class Against A11 I3efenrlants) 

Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs ofthis Coinplaint as if fully al.leged 

Defendants are "persons" as defined by Section 1681 a(b) of the FCRA. 

Plaintiff and class members are "consumers" witliin the meaning of Section 1681 a(c) 

20 II of the FC ~ because they-  ai-e "individuals." 

21 27.1 Section 1681 a(d)(1) of the FCRA defines "consumer report" as: 

22 "T11e t.erm "consuwner report" means any written, oral, or other communication of 
any information by a consumer reporting agency bearing on a consumer's credit 

23 worthiness, credit standing, credit capacity, clharacter, general reputation, persona3 
eharacteristics, or mode of ].iving which is used or expected to be used or collected in 

24 whole or in part for the purpose of serving as a factor in establishing the consunler's 
eligibility for— 

25 
(A) creclit or insurance to be used primai7ly for personal, fa7nily, or liouselho]d 

26 puiposes; 

?7 (B) einployment purposes; or 

28 (C} any otlier puc-pose authorized under section 1681b of this title." 

C:L.ASS ACTION C:Oi47PLAINT 
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12 
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14 

15 

16 

ingly, a credit and background report qualifres as a consunier report. 

Section 1681 a(e) of tlie FCRA def.incs "investigative consumer report" as: 

"The term `investigative constuner report" means a consumer report or portion 
thereof in which iiiforniation on a consumer's character, gencral reputation, personal 
characteiistics, or rnode of living is obtained throtigll personal interviews with 
neighbors, fi-iends, or associates of the consunier reported on or with others with 
whom lhe is acquaiiited or who may liave knowledge concerning any sucli items ofl' 
information. However, sucli informatioai shall not include specifie factual 
information on a consumer's credit record obtained directly fi•oni a creditor of the 
consumer or from a consumer reporting agency wheri sueh inforrnation was obtained 
directly from a creditor of the constnner or from the consumer." 

y, a credit and background report qualifies as an investigative consumer report. 

Section 1681 b(b)(2)(A) of the FCRA provides: 

Conditions for fi7niishing and using consumer reports for employment purposes 
Except as provided in subparagraph (B), a persoYi rnay not procure a consumer 
report, or cause a consumer report t.o be procured, for einployinent putposes With 
respect to any consumer, unless— 

(i) A clear and con.apicuous disclosure has been niade in writi3ig to the 
consumer at any time before the report is procured or caused to be procua-ed, 
in a document that consists solely oftlze disclosure, that a consumer report 
may be obtained for einployment pirrposes; and 

(ii) Tlie consunaer )tas autliorized in writing (which authorization 7nay be rnade 
on the document refeiTed to in clause (i)) the procurenaent of the report by 
that person. (Emphasis added.) 

29.  

30.  

in wtiting. 

31.  

7001(c), tli 

32.  

mcmbers f 

Section 1681b(b)(2)(A)(i) requires that a clear and conspicuous disclosure be made 

Because Defendants' disclosures do not nieet the a-equirernent of 15 U.S.C. section 

disclosures do not satisfy the written requirement. 

Plaintiff alleges, upon infoi7mtion and belief, that in evaluating her and other class 

eniployinent, Defendants procured or caused to be procured credit and background 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

repoi-ts (i.e. la consumer report aj}d/or investigative consumer report as defined by 15 U.S.C. section 

1681a(d)(1}~(B) and 15 U.S.C. section 1681a(e)). 

3 3. The purported disclosures do not meet the requirements under the law because they 

ai-e embedd d witli extraneous inforination, and are not elear and unambiguous disclosures in stand- 

alone docujiiezils. 

-- — 7  
a  ~~ ^ CLASS ACTION COIv4PLA1NT 
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34. Under the FCRA, it is unlawful to procure or caused to be procureci;  a consumer 

report or in estigative consmner report for employment pui-poses unless the disclosure is rnade in a 

II docunient tl~at consists solely of the disclosure and the consuiner lias authorized, in writing, the 

of the report. (15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)( a 0(AO(i)-(ii).) The inclusion of a release and 

other extrai  eous infonnation therefore violates section 1681 b(b)(2)(A) of the FCRA. 

35. Altliough the disclosure and authorization may be combined in a single docunient, 

the Federal Crade Conimissioza ("FTC") lias warned that the form should not incltide aiiv extraneous 

intorniation or be part of another docuinent. For exan~ple, in response to an inquiiy as to whether 

the disclosu e may be set forth within an application for employinent or whether it anust be included 

finas ; docunient, the FTC stated: 

"Tlhe disclosure may not be part of an einployment application because the language 
[of 15 U.S.C. section 1681 b(b)(2)(A) is] intended to ensure that it appeaY-s 
conspicuously in a documerit 3iot encumbered by any other infonnation. The reason 
for requiring that the disclosure be in a stand-alone docuinezit is to prevent 
consuniers fi•orn being distracted by other inforination side-by-side within the 
disclosure." 

36. The plain language of the statute also clearly indicates that the inclusion of a liability 

release in aIlisclosure fonn violates the disclosure and authorizatio3i requirements of the FCRA, 

because sucli a forin woulcl not consist "solely" of the disclosure. 7n fact, the FTC.expressiy warned I 

that the FCqA notice may not include extraneous infonnation such as a release. ln a 1998 opinion 

letter, the F"]'C stated: 

"[W]e note that your draft disclosure includes a l;-aiver by the consumer of his or her 
rights under the FCRA. The iiaclusion of suclh a waiver in a disclosure foi-rn will 
violate section 604(b)(2)(A) of the FCRA, which requires that a disclosure consist 
`soleiy' of the disclosure that.a consumer report may be obtained for employment 
purposes." 

37. In a report dated July 2011, the FTC reiterated that "the notice [under 15 I1.S.C. 

section 168 b(b)(2)(A))] may not include extraneous or contraciictory inforniation, such as a request 

for a consui ; ei's waiver of liis or her riglits under the FCRA." 

38. By includinl; a release and other extraneous inforination, Defendants willfully 

disregarded he FTC's regulatory guidance and violated sect.ion 1681 b(b)(2)(A) of tlie FCRA. 

Additionall, , the inclusion o.f the exiz•aneous provisions causes the disclosure to fail to be "clear and 
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" aiid "clear and aecurate" aiSd therefore violates sections 1681 b(b)(2)(A0 and 

1681 d(a). 

39. Defendants' conduct in violation of section 1681b(b)( )( ) 2 A of'the FCRA was and is 

willful. D fendants acts in deliberate or reckless disregard of tlheir obligations and the rights of 

applicants nd eniployees, including Plaintiff and class inenibers. Defendants' wi111'ul conduct is 

reflected b, among other things, the following facts: 

~ A. Defendants are a large coiporation with access to 1ega1 advice; 

B. Defendants required a purported autliorization to perfoi-m credit and 

background checks in the process of employing the elass members which, 

~ althougli defective, evidences Defendants' awareness of and willful failure to 

follow tbe goveniing laws concerning such authorizations; I 

C. The plain language of the statute unambiguously indicates that inclusion of a 

~ liability release and other extraneous infonnation in a disclosure foi-m 

~ violates the disciosure and authoi-ization requirements; and 

D. The FTC's express statements, ln•e-dating Defendants' conduct, whicli state 

that it is a violation of section 1681b(b)(2)(A) of the FCRA to include a 

liability waiver in the disclosure form. 

40. Defentlants required a liabi]ity release in the disclosure forrn, along with other 

extraneous nfonnation, that releases all parties involved froin any liability and responsibility for 

releasing ii forination they have about tlie Plaintiff to Defendants. ` 

41. Based upon thc facts likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable 

opportunit~ to further investigation and discovery, Plaintiff alleges that Defendants liave a policy 

and practici of procuring investigative consuiner reports or causi2ig investigative consumer reports 

to be procu ed for applicants and employees without iiiforniing them of tlieir right to request a 

summary o 7  their rights under the FC•RA at the sanie tiine as the disclosure explaining that an 

investigatiNFc consumer report may be made. Pursuant to that policy and practice, Defendants 

procured investigative consuiner reports or caused investigative consuiner repoz-ts to be procured for 

Plaintiff ano class inembers, as desci-ibed above, without informing class menibers of tlieir rights to 
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request a w -itten sumznary of their riglits ulider the FCRA. 

42. Accordingly, Defendants willfully violated and continue to violate the FCRA, 

including b it not limited to, sections 1681 b(b)(2)(A) and 1681 d(a). Defendants' willt:ul conduct is 

reflected b, among otlier things, the facts set forth above. 

43. As a result of: Defendants' unlawful procurement of credit and background reports by 

way of thei inadequate diselosures, as set forth above, Plaintiff and class members have been 

injured, ine uding but ►iot limited to, having their privacy and statutory riglits invaded in violation of 

the FCRA. ~ 

44. Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and all class tnernbers, seek all available reniedies 

pursuant to 15 U_S.C. section 1681 n, including statutory damages and/or actual daniages, puiiitive 

damages, i'unctive and equitable relief and attorneys' fees and costs. 

~ 45. ln the alternative to Plaintiff's allegation that these violations were willful, Plaintiff 

alleges that the violations were negligent and seeks the appropriate remedy, if any, under 15 U.S.C. 

section 168 o, including statutory damages and attorneys' fees and costs. 

SECOND CALISE OF ACTION 

FAILUR 'I'O GIVE PROPER SUMMAR'Sl OF RI.GI-ITS IN VIOLATION OF THE FCRA 

(I5 U.S.C. § 1681d(a)(1) and 1681g(c)) 

(Plaintiff ancl FCRA Class Against All I)efendants) 

46. Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs of this Coinplaint as if fully alleged 

herein. 

47. Sectioii 1681d(a) states: 

(a) Disclosure of fact of preparation 
A person znay not procure or cause to be prepared an investigative consutner report 
on any constimer unless— 

(1) it is clearly atzri accuf•atelj! disclosed to tlie corisurirer that an investigative 
consumer report including infonnation as to his character, general reputation, 
personal characteristics, and mode of living, whicli are applicable, rnay be 
niade, and such disclosure 

(A) is mude in a writiirg ixuiled, or otlierwise delivered, to tlre cnrr.surner, not 
later than tlu-ee days after the date on whicli the report was first requested, 
and 
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(B) iiiclrides a stateznerit inforfning the consurzzez• of his rigllt to request tlie 
additional disclosures provided for under subsection (b) of this section and 
tlte wz•itten szuzn»zary of tlte f•igltts of tfze corrsufrzer prepared pursuarit to 
section I G8Ig(c) of thi s ti tl e; and 

(Einpliasis added.) 

Section 1681d(b) states: 

(b) Disclosure on request of nature and scope of investigation 
Any person who procures or causes to be prepared an investigative consumer report 
on any consumer shall, upon written request made by the consumer within a 
reasonable period of time af}er the receipt by him of the disclosure required by 
subsection (a)(1), make a complete and accurate disclosure oftlie rxatttz•e afrd scope 
of tlze investigation requested. This disclosure sliall be made in a writing mailed, or 
after the date on wluch the request for such disclosure was received froni the 
consumer or sucla report was first requested, whieliever is the later. 
(Emphasis added.) 
As previously alleged, because Defendants' disclosures do not meet the requirement 

1(c)(1) of 15 U.S.C. section 7001, the disclosures do not satisfy the wn-ifiten 

Moreover, even if Defelidants' disclosures are deenied to satisfy Section 101(c)(1), 

lid not comply with Section 1681d(a)(1)(b) because the disclosul-es fail to infonn tlae 

the right to have the person who procured the report pl-ovide a coniplete and accurate 

the nature and scope of the investigation requested. 

Section 1681 g(c) further provides for suinmary of riglits to obtain alid dispute 

;in consumer reports and to obtain credit scores: 

(e) Sulrlliiary ofrights to obtain and dispute infonnation in consumer reports and to 
obtain creditscores 

(1) Commission 
Summary of rights required 

(A) In general 
The Colnmission shall prepare a model summary of the rights of consulnel-s 
under this subchapter. 

(B) Content of suminary 
The sulninary of i-iglits prepared under subparagrapli (A) shall include a 
descilptlon of- 

(1) the rlght of a consulTler to obtal.n a copy of a coIISulner I-eport under 
subsection (a) ti-oln each consulner reporting agency; 

(ii) the frequency and circumstances under whicli a consumer is entitled to 
receive a conswner report witliout charge under section 1681 j of this 

2 

J 

4 
48. 

5 

z 

8 

9 

10 49. 

of Section 

12 requiremen 

13 50. 

14 Defendants 

15 consumer o 

16 disclosure c 

17 51. 

18 infonnation 

19 

20 

21 
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24 
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7 

8 

9 

10 52. 

- 1 I the rigl.it of 

12 53. 

13 the frequen 

14 without cla, 

15 54. 

16 the right of 

17 55. 

18 the right of 

19 of how to o 

20 56. 

21 the metlZod 

22 reporting al 

23 57. 

24 the method 

25 reporting al 

26 Bureau pre: 

27 

28 r; i 

1 title; 

2 (iii) the right of a consumer to dispute infot-niation in the file of the 
coiisumer under sectioaa 16811 of this title; 

3 
(iv) the riglit of a consunier to obtain a ci-edit score from a consumer 

4 reporting agency, and a description ofliow to obtain a credit score; 

5 (v) the metliod by wliich a consumer can contact, and obtain a consumer 
report froni, a consuiner reporting agency without charge, as provided 

6 in the regulations of the Bureau prescribed under section 211(c) of the 
Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Aet of 2003; and 

(vi) the niethod by w1iic11 a consumer can contact, and obtain a consumer 
report fi-orn, a consumer reporting agency described in section 
1681a(w) of this title, as provided in the regulations of the Bureau 
prescribed under section 16813(a)(1)(C) ofthis title. 

Defendants did not comply with 1681 g(c)(B)(1) because tlie diselosru-es did not state 
~ 

~ consurner to obtain a copy of a consumer report frozn eaclh consunier reporting agency. ' 

Defendants did not coniply with 168I g(c)(B)(2) because the disclosure did not state 

;y and circunistances under which a consumer is entitled to receive a consumer report 

Defendants did not comply with 1681 g(c)(B)(3) because the disclosure did not state 

consumer to dispute inforniation in the file of the consumer. 

Defendants did not coinply with l 681 g(c)(B)(4) beca.use the disclosure did not state 

consutner to obtain a ci-edit score from a corisumer repoi-ting agency and a description 

a credit score. 

Defetidants did not comply with 1681 g(c)(B)(5) because the disclosure did not state 

wliich a consumer can contact, and obtain a consu2ner report from, a consumer 

lcy without charge. 

Defendants did not coniply with 1681g(c)(B)(6) because the disclosure did not state 

~ which a consumer can contact, and obtain a consunier report froin, a consumer 

icy desci-ibed in section 1681 a(w) of this title, as provided in the regulations of the 

ibed under section 1681j(a)(l)(C) of this title. 
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THIRD CAUSF OF ACTION 

rAIL TO MAKE PROPER DISCLOSURE IN VIOLATTON OF THE ICRAA 

(Cal. Civ. Cocle §§ 1786 et serl.) 

(Plaintiff ancl ICRAA Class Against All Defendaiits) 

58.1 Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraplis in the C:oniplaint as if fully alleged 

hereiti. ~ 
I 

59. Defendants are "persons'° as defined by sectiozi 1786.2(a) of the ICRAA. 

60. Plaiiitiff and 1CRAA Class meznbers are "consuniers" within the meaning of section 

I 1786.2(b) orthe ICRAA because they ai•e "individuals." 

Section 1786.2(c) of the ICRAA defines "investigative consumer report" as: 

"Tlie terni investigative consumer report ineans a. consutner report in whicli 
infonrnation on a consumer"s character, general reputation, personal clia.racteristies, 
or niode of living is obtaiiaed through any means." 

Accordingly, a backgroutid clieck qualifies as an investigative consumer report under 

the ICRAA. 

63. Section 1786.16(a)(2) of the 1CRAA provides: 

(2) If, at any tiine, an investigative consumer i-epoi-C is souglit for employment 
purposes other than suspicion of wrongdoing or naisconduct by the subject of the 
mvestigation, the person seeking the investigative consurnier report may procure 
the report, or cause the report to be niade, or~ly if all of tlie following apply: 

(A) The person procuring or causing the report to be made has a pennissible 
purpose, as defined in Section 1786.12. 

(B) The person procuring or causing the report to be made provides a cCear and 
corzspicrrous disclosure in writing to the consunner at any time before the 
report is procured or caused to be made in a docurrierit tlzat corzsists solely of 
tl:e disclosure, tliat: 

(i) An investigative consurner repoit may be obtained. 

(ii) The pemiissible purpose of the report is identified. 

(iii) The disclosua-e niay inc.lude inforination on the consumer's character, 
general reputation, personal characteristics, and niode of iiving. 

(iv) Identihes the riasrt.e, address, afrd telephoire rtctErzber of the irivestigative 
corrstuner• r•eportang agerrcy,  conducting tlhe investigation. 

(v) Notifies the consurner in wi-iting oi'tlie nature and scope of the 
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investigatioti requested, including a summary of the provisions of Section 
1786.22. 

(vi) Notr.'fies tlte corzsrs»ter of fl7e Xiitet•t1et i3'eb site arldl-ess of tlae 
iitvestigative corrsuriier reportfng agencjl identified in clause (iv), or, if 
tlje ageitcy has rao Intes-rzet lJ'eb site adriress, the teleplioiie riumber of 
tlze agejrcv, where the consumer may find infonnation about the 
investigative reporting agency's pi-ivacy practices, including wlietlier the 
constimei•'s personal inforniation wili be sent outside the United States or 
its teri'itories and information that coriiplies with subdivision (d) of Section 
1786.20. This clause shall be operative on .lanuary 1, 2012. 

(C) Tlie consumer lias authorized in writing the procLu•einent of the report. 

(Empliasis added.) 

mm As previously alleged, because Defendants' disclosures do not meet the requirements 

of section 1101(c)(1) of 15 U.S.C. section 7001, the disclosures do not satisfy section 1786.16(a)(2) 

of the ICI11 A requirement that the disclosures be made in writing. 

65. As described above, Plaintiff alleges that in evaluating her and otlier class rnenibers 

~loy neiit, Defendants procured or caused to be prepai:ed investigative co3isui-ner report (e.g. 

)un( checks) as described by Civil Code section l 786.2(c). 

66. Because the puiported disclosuw-es are embedded witli extraneous inforniation and 

cle : and unambiguous disclosures in stand-alone documents, they do not meet tlie 

nen, s under the law. 

67. 1 Uiider the ICRAA, it is unlawful to procure or caused to be procured, a consumer 

report or intestigative consunier report for employnient puiposes unless the disclosure is made in a 

document t~at consists solely of the disclosui•c and the consurner has authorized, in writing, the 

procuremei t of the report. Cal. Civ. Code § 1786.16(a)(2)(B)-(C). Tlie inclusion of any other 

extraneous nforination violates section 1786.16(a)(2)(B) ofthe ICRAA. 

68. By including other extraneous inforniation, Defendants willfully violated section 

1786.16(a)( )(B) of the ICRAA. Additionally, the inclusion of the extraneotis provisions causes the 

disclosure t) fail to be "clear and conspicuous" and thus violates section 1786.16(a)(2)(B). 

69. Based upon facts that are likely to have evidentiary support afier a reasonable 

opportunity for investigation and discovery, Plaintiff alleges that Defetidants have a policy and 

practice of I ailing to provide adequa.te writteri disclosure to applicants atid ernployees, before 

9 14 
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1 procuring ackground eliecks or causing backgrouwid checks to be procured, as desci-ibed above. 

2 Pursuantl that poliey and practice, Defendants procured bacicgi-ound checks or caused backgX•ound 

3 I cliecks to : procured for Plaintiff and class menibers without f rst providing a wiitten disclosure in 

4 with section 1786.16(a)(2)(B) of the 1CRAA;  as described above. 

5' 70 Defendants' conduct in violation of Section 1786.16(a)(2)(B) of the 1CRAA was and 

6 is willful a] d/or grossly negligent. Defendants acted in delibei-ate or reckless disregard of their 

7 obligations ind the rights of applieants and etnployees, including Plaintiff and class members. 

8 willful conduct is reflected by, among other tliing's, the following facfis: 

9 (a) Defendants are large corporations with access to legal advice; 

10 (b) Defendants required a pui1)orted authorization t.o perfoiin credit and backgrottnd 

Il 1 cliecks in the process of eiiiploying the class lnembers which, although defective, 

12 evidences Defendants' awareness oi' and willfi.il  failure to follow the governing 

13 laws conceriiing such authorizations; and 

14 (c) The plain language of the statut.e una3nbiguously indicates that iriclusion of a 

15 liability release and otlier extraneous infortnation in a disclosure forin violates 

16 the disclosure and authorization requirements, and that the disclosure forin nlust 

17 contain the naine, address, phone number, and/or website address of the 

18 invest.igative consunier reporting agency conducting the investigation. 

19 71. As a result of Defeaidants' illegal procurement ofbackground reports by way of their 

20 inadequate lisclosures, as set forth above, Plaintiff and class niembers have been injured iricluding, 

21 but not liini led to, having tlheir privacy and statutory i-ights invaded in violation of the ICRAA. 

22 72. Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and all ciass menibers, seeks all available reinedies 

23 pursuant to Civil Code section 1786.50, including statutory dainages and/or actual damages, 

24 punitive dar iages, and attorneys' fees and costs. 

25 73. In the altemative to Plaintiffs allegation that these violations were willful or grossly 

26 negligent, F lailitiff alleges that the violations were negligent and seeks the appropi-iate rernedy, if 

27 any, under Civil Code scction 1786.50(a), including actual darrnages and attorneys' fees and costs. 

28 /l/ 

CLASS -ACTION COMPLAINT ~ 

Case 3:18-cv-06469-JCS   Document 1-1   Filed 10/23/18   Page 18 of 25



1 

2 

3 

4 

51 

b, 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

-- 181 

i 
~ 

FA IL; 

74: 1 
I 

75. j 
e 

Reporting 
~ 

~ 

76. 1 

1785_3(b) 

77 

I Tlius, a 

78. 

FOURTIi CAUSE OF A.CTION 

JRE 'I'O 1lAKE PROPER DISCLOSURE IN VIOLATION OF TI-IE CCRAA. 

(Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1785 et seq.) 

(Plaintiff and CCI2AA Class Against All Defendants) 

Plaintiff incorporates a1l paragraplis of this Conlplaint as if fiilly alleged herein. 

Defendants are "persons" as defined by Section 1785.30) of the Consumer Credit 

gencies Act ("CCRAA"). 

Plaintiff and CCRAA Class rnenibers are "consuniers," within the meaning Sectioia 

the CCRAA, because they are "natural individuals." 

Section 1785.3(c) of the ICRAA defines "consumer credit report" as: 

iy written, oral, or otlier coinrnunication of any infornaation by a consumer credit 
poi•ting agency bearing on a consunier's credit worthiness, credit sianding, or credit 
pacity, whicli is used or is expected to be used, or collected in whole or in part, for 
epurpose of serving as a factor in establishing the consumer's eligibility for: ...(2) 
nployment putposes.. _ 

; report qualifies as a consuiner credit report under the CCRAA. 

Section 1755.20.5(a) of the C.CRAA provides, in relevant part: 

z•ior to requesting a consumer credit report for eniployment purposes, tl3e user of the 
;port sllall provide written notice to the person involved. The notice sliall inform the 
erson that a report will be used, and sJzall idesitifi,  the specifr.c basis under subdivisiorr 
r) of S'ectioji. 1024.5 of the Labor• Code fol• us•e of the report. The iiotice sliall also 
rfor»i tlie persoat qf'tlze soru-ce of the repnrt... 

19 'i.nphasis added.) 

20 79. As described above, P.laiaitiff alleges that in evaluating lier and other class 

21 ineriibers fo employment, Defendants procured or caused to be prepared consumer credit reports 

22 (e.g, credit i epoils), as defaned by Section 1785.3(c). 

23 80. The disclosure provided by Defendants does not identify the specific basis under 

24 subdivision (a) of Sectiozi 1024.5 of the Labor Code for use of the credit report. This omission 

25 clearly viol .tes Section 1785.20.5(a) of the CCRAA, as delineated above. 

26 I 81. Based upon facts that are likely to liave evidentiary support aftei-  a reasonable 

27 I opportunity for investigation and discovery, l'laintiff alleges that Defendants have a policy and 

:I practicc of ~ilirig to provide adequate written disclosures to applicants aiid employees, before 

c.'l_ASS ACTrUN CoP4PLAlNT 
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proeuring c edit repoils or causing credit reports to be procured, as described above. Pursuant to 

that policy nd practice, Defendants procured ci-edit reports or caused credit reports to be procured 

for Plaiiitifi and class members without first providing a written notice in compliance with Section 

1 l 785.20.54 of the CCRAA, as described above. 

I
Defendants' conduct in violation of Section 1785.20.5(a) of the CCRAA was and is 

6r grossly negligent. Defendants acted in deliberate or reckless disregard of their 

axid the rights of applicants azid einployees, including Plaintiff and class nrembers. 
I 

~ willftd conduct is ref7ected by, among other things, the following facts: 
~ 

(a) Defeiidants are large corporations with access to legal advice; 

(b) Defendants reyuired a puiported authorizatioyi to perform credit checks in the 

process of employing the class members wlhich, although, defective, 

evideiices Defendants' awareness of and willful failure to follow tlle 

bovernizig laws conceriring suclh authorizations; and 

(c) 7'he plain language of the statute wiartibiguously indicates that failure to 

~ include the provisions identified above violates the CCRAA's notice 

requirernents, aiid that the notice inust identify the specific basis under 

subdivision (a) of Section 1024.5 of the Labor Code for use of the credit 

t report and rnust identify the source of any credit report. 

83. As a restilt of Defendants' illegal procurenient of credit reports by way of their 

inadequate i iotice, as set fortli above, Plaintiff and class ineinbers liave been injured including, but 

not limited o, liaving their privacy and statutory rigIits irrvaded in violation of the CCRAA. 

84. Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and all class inembers, seeks all available remedies 

pursuant to ivil Code section 1785.31, including statutoi-y damages and/or actual damages, 

punitive da ages, injunctive relief; and attorneys' fees and costs. 

85. ln the alternative to Plaintif.l`s allegation that these violations were willful, Plaintiff 

alleges that .lie violations were negligent and seeks the appi-opriate remedy, if any, undei-  Civil 

Code sectio i 1785.31(a)(1), including but not liniited to actiaal damages and attomeys' fees and 

costs_ 
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6 lierein. 

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

UNFAIR COMPETITION 

(1`3us. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, eE seq.) 

iintiff and FCRA, ICRAA and CCRAA Class Against All Defendants) 

Plaintiff incorporates the preceding paragraphs of the Complaint as if fully alleged 

7 87. Business and Professions Code section 17200 defines "unfair coinpetition" to 

8 include any unlawfi2l business practice. 

9 88. Busiriess and Professions Code sectioiis 17203-17204 allow a person wlio has 

10 lost money r property as a result of unfair competition to bring a class action in accordance with 

11 Code of Ci il Procedure section 382 to recover money or property tlzat may have been acquired 

12 from siniila iy situated persons by means of unfair competition. 

13 89. Federal and Califoniia laws require certain disclosures and proper autliorization 

14 before conc ucting background cliecks and obtaining information from eredit and background 

15 reports in c nnection with a hii-ing process. 

16 90. Plaintiff and the FCR.A., ICRAA and.CCRAA Class re-alleges and incorporates by 

17 reference t e FIRST, SECOND, THIRD and FOURTH causes of action lierein. 

18 91. Plaintiff lost money or property as a result of the aforeirietitioned unfair 

19 

20 ' 92. Defendants Itave, or anay have, acquired 7noney by means of ujtfair coinpetition. 

21 93. Defendants have violated Federal and Califoi7iia laws througli their policies and 

22 practices ofl inter alia, routinely acquiriYig consumer, investigative consunier and/or consumer 

23 credit repo s(referred to collectively as "credit and backl,n-ound reports") to conduct background 

24 cliecics on P~ aintiff and other prospective, cunent and fonner employees and use information from 

25 credit and b ekground repoi-ts in connection witli their hiring process without providing proper 

26 disclosures iiid obtaining proper authorization in conipliance with the law. 

27 94. Tiie unlawful coziduct of Defendants alleged lterein amounts to and constitutes 

28 unf'air coml:letition within the meaning of Btusiriess and Professions Code sections 17200, et seq. 

CLASS ACTION COMPl_AlN'7. -~- 

Case 3:18-cv-06469-JCS   Document 1-1   Filed 10/23/18   Page 21 of 25



l 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

81 

9 

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
~ 

21 I 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Btisiness ar. d Professions Code section 17200, et seq., protects against uiifair compet.ition and 

allows a person wlho has suffered an injury-in-fact and has lost riioney or property as a result of an 

unfair, unla x~ful, or fraudulent business practice to seck restitlition on his own belialf and on behalf 
~ 

of other sin ilarly situated persons in a'class action proceedijig. 

95. Plaintiff is infornied and believes that otlier similarly situated persons have been 

subject to tl e same unlawful policies or practices of Defendants. 

96. Due to its unfair and unlawfiil business practices in violation of Federal and 

California 1 iws as alleged herein, Defendants have gained a competitive advantage over other 

comparable companies doing business in the State of California that comply witli their legal 

J obligations 

97. Purstiant to Business and Professions Code section 17203, Plaintiff, on behalf of 

herself and he otlier niejnbers of the FCRA, ICRAA and CCRAA Class, seeks declaratory relief 

and restituti Dii of all monies rightfully belonging to tliem that Defendants did not pay them or 

otherwise r tained by means of its unlawfiil and unfair business practices. 

98. ~ Calif.ornia's Unfair Competition Law ("UCL") permits civil recovery and injunctive 

for "any un  awfiil, unfair or fraudulent business act or practice," including if a practice or act 

violates or i• considered unlawfial under any other state or federal law. 

99. ~ Accordingly, pursuant to Business and Professions Code sections 17200 and 17203, 

Plaintiffs re uest the issuance of temporary, preliminary and permanent injunctive relief enjoining 

Defendants and each of tl-iein, and their agents and enployees, ii-om fitrther violations of the 

FCRA, 1CR AA and CCRAA; and upon a final hearing seek an order pennanently enjoining 

Defendants, and each of thean, and tlieir respective agents and eniployees, from furtlier violations 

of the FC , ICRAA and CCRAA. 

100. Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1021.5, the substantial benefit docti-ine 

andloi• the c mmon fiind doctrine, Plaintiff and the otlher members of the FCRA, ICRAA and 

CCRAA C ass are entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' fees in connection wit11 their un#ail-  

competition claims. 

/r/ 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

1VI. EREFORE, Plaintif#; oai behalf of herself and all others sianilarly situated, prays for 

relief and ji idgineiit against Defendants as follows: 

A.  An order that tlte action be certified as a class action; 

B.  An order that Plaintiffbe appointed class representative; 

C.  An order that counsel for Plaintiffbe appoiiited class counsel; 

D.  Statutory penalties; 

E.  Civil penalties; 

~ F. Punitive damages; 

G.  Injunctive relief; 

H.  Costs of suit; 

I.  Interest; 

J.  Restitiition; 

K.  Reasonable attorneys' fees; and 
~ 

L.  Such otlier relief as the Court deenzs just aud proper. 

DEIVIAND FORJUR`il TRYAL 

Plai tiff, on behalf of herself aiid all otliers similarly situated, hereby deiiiands a jury trial 

on all issue so ti•iable. 

DATED: ; 20, 2018 SETAREH LAW GROUP 

SHAUNSETAREH 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
KATHARINE L. WHITE 

-- W CLASS AC'I'ION COMPI_AINT - - 

Case 3:18-cv-06469-JCS   Document 1-1   Filed 10/23/18   Page 23 of 25



ATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUTATTORNEY (Name. Stafe 8ar number, and adc4ess): 
Sliaun Setareh (SB 2045 ) 4) 

FOR COURT USEONLY 

SETAREH LAW ROUP 
315 Soutli Beverly rive, Suite 31 5 
Beverly Hills, Cali : rnia 90212  

TELEPHONENO: IO) 888-777I FAXNO.: (310) 888-0109  
ATTORNEYFOR(Nama~: atharine L. White ;t'~

,
~t~~~~~ y , 

~~~  SUPERIOR CQURT OF CA IFORNIA, COUNTY OP Alameda 
S'rREETADDRESS: 1125 Pallon Street (j 

MAILING ADDRESS:  

CITYANozIPCOflE: C akland, California 9461
2 

BRANCH NAME: ne C. Davidson Coui-tJlouse ~~.l,j'd  ~"~ "~ ~'•= `' ~.F SS.k'~Fy-{, 1~~~~ta 

~~~''( ~,~~I(~~s. ~'~i~~'~~`,~~. De13iZ~ 

. 

CASE NAME: 

i~1 A-M 11u141  -rhCA v-e 
CIVIL CASE CpVER SHEE7 

0 [] 
Complex Case Designation 

Untimited t_imited  
' . 

CASENUMBER 

~ Counter [~ Joinder '   .. 
JuoGE: (Amount (Amount 

demanded demanded is Filed with first appearance by defendant 
exceeds $25,0 ;) $25,000 or less) (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.402) oEPT: 

Items 1-6 below must be completed (see instructions on page 2). 

1. Check one box bel w for the case type that best describes this case: 

Auto Tort Contract • 

~ 

Provisionally Complex Civif Litigation 
(Cat. Rules of Court, rules 3.40D-3.403) ED Auto (22) Breach of contracUvrarranty (06) 

0 Uninsured mo rist (46) Rule 3.740 coileclions (09) ~ Antitrust/Trade regulation (03) 

Other PIIPD/WD (Pe sonal Injury/Property 1 r Other collections (09) ~ Construction defect (10) 
DamagelWrongful 0 eath) Tort ~ insurance coverage (18) 
~ Asbestos (04) 0 

~ Mass tort (40) 

0 Securities Iltigation Other contract (37) 
~ Product liabilit (24) Real Property 

(28) 

~ EnvironmentalfToxic tort 
~ Medical malpr. ctice (45) O Eminent domain/Inverse 

(30) 

E-1 Insurance coverage claims arising from the 
0 Other PI/PD (23) condemnation (14) above listed provisionaljy comptex case 

Non-PIlPDIWD (Oth~r) Tort ~ Wrongfui eviction (33) types (41) 

0 Business torU fair business practice (07) ~ Other real property (26) 

~ Unlawful Detainer 

Enforcement of Judgment 

0 Enforcement ofjudgment (20) Civil righls (08 

E] ~ Commercial Defamation (1 ,} (31) 

0 Fraud (16) ~ ~ Residentiai (32) 
Miscellaneous Civil Complaint 

0 RICO (27) 

0 Intellectuaj pro erty (19) ~ Drugs (38) ~ Other complaint (nol specified above) (42) 
~ Professionai n gligence (25) Judicial Review 

0 0 Asset forfeiture 
tJiiscellaneous Civil Petition 

Other n.I,-PI/F D/WD tort (35) (05) ~ Partnership and corporate govemance (21) 
Employment F-1 Petition re: arbilration award (11) 

0 Wrongful termi (36) ~ Writ alion of mandate (02) 
Other petition (not specified above) (43) 

Other emptoy . ent (15) ~ Other judiciat review (39) 

2. This case ✓ ILA is not cornplex under rule 3.400 of the California Rules of Court. If the case is complex, mark the 
factors requiring e Ceptional judicial management: 

a. ~✓ Large nu ~,ber of separately represented parties d. Large number of witnesses 

b. E7] Extensivemotion practice raising difficult or novel e. Coordination with related actions pending in one or more courts 

Issues thit will be time-consuming to resolve in other counties, states, or countries, or in a federal court 

SubstantiAl amount of documentary evidence f. 0✓ Substantiai postjudgmentjudicial supervision 

3. Remedies soughl .check alf thaf apply): a.M monetary b. nonmonetary; [~✓ 

4. Number of causes~ f action (specify): Five 

declarato or injunctive reiief c. ~ punitive ry 

5. This case ~✓ I~ = is not a class action suit. 

6. If there are any kn wn related cases, file and serve a notice of related case_()< ay use form CM-095.) ~ 

Date: September 2 , 2018  
Shaun Setareh, Es  

ITVPF rlR PRINT NA41C1 (SIGNATURE OF PARTY OR ATlORNEY FOR PARTYS 

a Plaintiff must file t ts cover sheet with the first paper filed in the action or proceeding (except smail claims cases or cases filed 
under the Probate ode, Family Code, or Welfare and Inslitutions Code). (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.220.) Failure to file may result 
in sanctions. 

° File this cover shei t in addition to any cover sheet required by local court rule. 
a If this case is com lex under rule 3.400 et seq. of the California Rules of Court, you must serve a copy of this cover sheet on all 

other parties to thp action or proceeding. 
a Unless this is a col ections case under rule 3.740 or a cornplex ease, this Cover sh(:et wiil be used for statistical purposes . on~ 

aaelof2 

Form Adoptod for ldantlalory lJsr+, CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET Cal Rules of Court, rules 2.30, 3.220, 3.400-3.403, 3.740; 
JUCicial Council cf Caiifom(a Cal. Standards of Judicial Administration, std. 3.10 
CAn•010 IRr,e. ,Iuly 1, 20071 - w,r.v.couninln.ra.go~ 

~ ~ ~~~~ox 
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CM-010 
INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO COMPLETE THE COVER SHEET 

To Plaintiffs and Others Filing First Papers. If you are filing a first paper (for example, a compiaint) in a civil case, you must 
complete and file, along with your first paper, the Civi1 Case Cover Sheet contained on page 1. This information wiil be used to compile 
statistics about the types and numbers of cases filed. You must complete items 1 through fi on the sheet. In item 1, you must check 
one box for the case type that best describes the case. If the case frts both a general and a more specific type of case listed in item 1, 
check the more specifc one. If the case has multiple causes of action, check the box that best indicates the primary cause of action. 
To assist you in completing the sheet, examples of the cases that belong under each case type in item 1 are provided beiow. A cover 
sheet must be filed only with your initial paper_ Failure to file a cover sheet with the ftrst paper filed in a civil case may subject a party, 
its counsel, or both to sanctions under rules 2.30 and 3_220 of the California Rules of Court. 

To Parties in Rule 3.740 Collections Cases. A"collections case" under rule 3.740 is deflned as an action for recovery of money 
owed in a sum stated to be certain that is not more than $25,000, exclusive of interest and attorney's fees, arising from a transaction in 
which property, services, or money was acquired on credit. A collections case does not include an action seekfng the following: (1) tort 
damages, (2) punitive damages, (3) recovery of real property, (4) recovery of personal property, or (5) a prejudgment writ of 
attachment. The identification of a case as a rule 3.740 collections case on this form means that it will be exempt from the general 
time-for-service requirements and case management rutes, unless a defendant files a responsive pleading. A rule 3.740 coliections 
case will be subject to the requirements for service and obtaining a judgment in rule 3.740. 

To Parties in Complex Cases. In complex cases oniy, parties must also use the Civi! Case Cover Sheet to designate whether the 
case is complex. If a piaintiff beiieves the case is complex under ruie 3.400 of the California Rules of Court, this must be indicated by 
completing the appropriate boxes in items 1 and 2. Jf a plaintiff designates a case as complex, the cover sheet must be served with the 
complaint on all parties to the action. A defendant may file and serve no later than the tirne of its first appearance a joinder in the 
plaintifPs des9gnation, a counter-designation that the case is not compiex, or, if the plaintiff has made no designation, a designation that 
the case Is corftplex. CASE TYPES AND EXAMPLES 
Auto Tort Contract PTovisionaliy Complex Civil Litigation (Cal. 

Auto (22)-Personal Injury/Property Breach of ContractlWarranty (06) Rules of Court Rules 3.400--3.403) 
DamageMlrongful Death Breach of RentallLease AntitrustfTrade Regulation (03) 

Uninsured Motorisf (46) (if the Contract (not unlawful detainer Construction Defect (10) 
case involves an uninsured or wrongful eviction) Claims Involving Mass Tort (40) 
motorist claim subject to Contract/Warranty Sreach-Seller Securities Litigation (28) 
arbitration, check this item Piaintiff (not fraud or negligence) Environmental/Toxic Tort (30) 
instead ofAuto) Negligent Breach of Contract/ insurance Coverage Claims 

Other PIIPDlWD (Personal Injuryl Warranty (arising trom provisionally complex 
Property Damage/Wrongful Death) Other Breach of ContracllWarranty case type listed above) (41) 

Tort Collectlons (e.g., money owed, open Enforcement of Judgment 
Asbestos (04) book accounts) (09) Enforcement of Judgment (20) 

Asbeslos Property Damage Collection Case-Seller Plaintiff Abstract of Judgment (Out of 
Asbestos Personal Irijuryl Other Prontissory NotelCollec(ions County) 

Wrongful Death Case Confession of Judgment (non- 

Product Liabilily (not asbestos or Insurance Coverage (not provisionally domesticrefations) 
toxic%nvirorunental) (24) complex) (18) Sister State Judgment 

Medical MalpractEce (45) Auto Subrogation Administrative Agency Award 
tviedical Malpractice•- Other Coverage (not unpaid taxes) 

Physicians & Surgeons Other Contract (37) Petition/Certification of Entry of 

Other Professional Health Care Contractual Fraud Judgment on Unpaid Taxes 

Malpractice Other Contract Dispute Other Enforcement of Judgment 
Case 

Other PI/PDlWD (23) Real Property 
Premises Liability (e.g., slip Eminent Domain/lnverse Miscellaneous Civil Complaint 

and fall) Condemnation (14) RICO (27) 

Intentional Bodily Injury/PDIWD Vdrongful Eviction (33) Other Complaint (not specifled 
above) (42) 

(e.g., assault. vandatism) Olher Real Property (e.g„ quiet title) (26) Declaratory Reiief pnly Intentional Inftiction of Writ of Possession of Real Property Injunctive Relief Onty (non- Eniotional Distress Mortgage Foreclosure harassment) Ne li ent InFliction of 9 9 Quiet Title Mechanics Lien Emotional Distress Other Real Property (not eminent Other Commercial Complaint Other PI/PD,NVD domain, landlord/tenant, or 
Case (non-tort/non-complex) 

Non-PIIPDMID (Other) Tort foreclosure) Other Civil Comptaint 
Business Tort/Unfair Business Uniawful Detainer (non-tort/non-compfex) 

Practice (07) Commerciat (31) Miscellaneous Civii Petition 
Civil Rights (e.g., discrimination. Residential (32) Partnership and Corporate 

false arrest) (not civll Drugs (38) (if the case Invotves illegal Governance (21) 
harassment) (08) drugs, check this item; otherwise, Other Peti ton (not speci6ed t 

Defamation (e.g., slander, libet) re ort as Commercial or Residential P ) abov©) (43) 
(13) Judiciai Review Civi3 Harassment 

Fraud (16) Asset Forfeiture (05) Workplace Violence 
Intellectual Property (19) Petilion Re: Arbitration Award (11) ElderiDependent Adutt 
Professional Negligence (25) Writ of Mandate (02) Abuse 

Legal Malpractice Writ-Administrative Mandamus Eleciion Contest 
Ottter Professionai Malpractice Writ-Mandamus on Litnited Court Pe[ition for Name Change 

(not medical or legal) Case Matter Petition for Relief From Late 
Other Non•PI/PDlWD Tort (36) Writ-Other Limited Court Case Claim 

Emptoyment Review Other Civil Petiiion 
Wrongful Termination (36) Other Judicial Reviev✓ (39) 
Other Employment (15) Review of Health Officer Order 

Notice of Appeal-i-abor 
Commissioner Appeals _ 

cr,,.o,oiHPv,,,lf ,,zcOrl 
CIViL CASE COVER SHEET 
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ROD M. FLIEGEL, Bar No. 168289 
ALISON S. HIGHTOWER, Bar no. 112429 
JULIE A. STOCKTON, Bar No. 286944 
LITTLER MENDELSON, P.C. 
333 Bush Street, 34th Floor 
San Francisco, CA  94104 
Telephone: (415) 433-1940 
Facsimile: (415) 399-8490 
Email: rfliegel@littler.com 
           ahightower@littler.com  
  jstockton@littler.com 

Attorneys for Defendant 
AMN HEALTHCARE, INC. 
 

 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

KATHARINE L. WHITE, on behalf of 
herself, all others similarly situated, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

AMN HEALTHCARE, INC., a Nevada 
corporation; and DOES 1 through 50, 
inclusive, 

Defendants. 

CASE NO.  3:18-cv-6469 

DECLARATION OF RANDY A. SELLERS 
IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT’S NOTICE 
OF REMOVAL OF ACTION TO FEDERAL 
COURT 
 
(Alameda County Superior Court  
Case No. RG18921814) 
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I, Randy A. Sellers, declare as follows: 

1. I am an adult over the age of 18 and a resident of the state of Texas.  The 

information set forth herein is true and correct of my own personal knowledge (unless otherwise 

stated) and if asked to testify thereto, I would do so competently. 

2. I am currently employed as the Manager, Credentialing for AMN Healthcare, 

Inc. (“AMN”).  In that role, I have personal knowledge regarding the pre-employment background 

screens conducted of applicants for employment positions with AMN and its affiliates.  I am 

authorized to make these statements on behalf of AMN.   

3. AMN screens job applicants across the country for various positions, 

including physicians, nurses, physical therapists, occupational therapists, and other medical-related 

positions.  AMN’s affiliates seek applicants nationwide, including Arizona, California, Colorado, 

Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Iowa, Maryland, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Missouri, New Mexico, New 

York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Tennessee and Texas.   

4. Based on my review of company records, during the period of September 21, 

2013 to October 22, 2018, more than 52,000 individuals seeking jobs with AMN affiliates across the 

nation submitted to a background check, including applicants residing outside of California.  Over 

19,000 individuals sought jobs with AMN affiliates in California during the same time period. 

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the United States of 

America and the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed on the 23rd day of October, 2018. 

  
  
                  Randy A. Sellers 

 
 
FIRMWIDE:158835981.1 058080.1007  
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ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
post: Former Employee Claims AMN Healthcare Illegally Acquired Background Reports

https://www.classaction.org/news/former-employee-claims-amn-healthcare-illegally-acquired-background-reports
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